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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT 

2020/21 has been a year like no other, with the effects of the global COVID-19 pandemic felt by 
all. The versatility of our employees to meet increased demand, rising customer numbers and 
implement change projects whilst adapting to new ways of working has been impressive, and I 

am proud of how the Company has continued to deliver quality services in these unprecedented 
times. 

The launch of the 2020-2023 UK SBS Business Plan established five strategic themes, three focused 
directly on clients and end-users with two focused more internally on UK SBS. Significant work has been 
completed with owners, the Board and the Executive team to align key performance measures, projects 
and programmes with these new strategic themes. The Strategic Report highlights the key activities 
completed in year to support the delivery of these themes for change and the longer-term outputs 
expected. 

The pause and reset of the Future Shared Services (FSS) Programme in March 2020 saw our two 
owners' approaches diverge, with UK Research and Innovation (UKRI) launching its own shared service 
programme (SHARP). The subsequent wider re-launch of the Cabinet Office Government Shared 
Service Strategy iri March 2021 identified UK SBS as the proposed shared services centre for a cluster 
of eight government departments. Our Business Plan aligns with the Strategy and the Company is 
continuing to work collaboratively with the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
(BEIS), the lead department for the cluster, and UKRI to understand the requirements, timescales and 
op.tions for implementation. · 

To respond to these future challenges and to meet our vision of becoming the leading UK public sector 
business services provider, actively sought by government bodies, UK SBS has started on a significant 
internal transformational journey so that it is ready, skilled and structured for the opportunities available 
in the coming two to five years. The positive lessons learnt and use of technology from the new ways of 
working in place since March 2020 will be taken forward as UK SBS moves to a hybrid working 
approach, embedding the right culture and behaviours to support the significant transformational activity 
for both UK SBS and clients. 

There were no changes to the Company's governance arrangements in 2020/21. The risk management 
controls continue to be embedded across the organisation, with the Head of Internal Audit noting that 
core service line processes and internal controls had continued to improve despite the challenges faced 
by COVID-19. This is excellent news and a tribute to the hard work undertaken by the team. 

As the_ Company looks to the forthcoming year and welcoming a new Chairman and as I step down in 
the summer, I am confident that UK SBS is preparing itself in readiness for the future. The continuation 
of quality services to customers is a true credit to all those who work for UK SBS through these 
unprecedented times and beyond. Our partnered approach with clients and owners continues to deliver 
value through effective, efficient and resilient business services. 

Tim Knighton 
Chairman 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
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STRATEGIC REPORT 

Strategic Context 

The strategic landscape within which UK SBS operates has changed dramatically over the last 12 
months, with some of the key changes outlined within the sections below. The report then examines 
performance and outputs against the strategic themes, alongside key performance indicators and 
metrics. The report also highlights the Company's financial and non-financial performance for the year, 
people developments, our response to change, key risks, mitigating actions and internal audit activity. 

COVID-19 Pandemic 

The turn of the 2020/21 financial year saw the start of an extraordinary year, with COVID-19 presenting 
unprecedented challenges for everyone in all aspects of their lives. The speed at which the pandemic 
unfolded meant that UK SBS had to fundamentally change the ways in which it worked, provided 
services and supported our clients through change, moving from a predominantly office-based 
organisation on desktop computers to being spread out to almost 600 locations overnight. 

The use and implementation of new technology became paramount alongside a rollout of equipment to 
enable teams to continue to work, effectively without the usual access to offices. The control framework 
was reviewed and updated to ensure that processes and procedures continued without any undue risk to 
client data, with appropriate assurance measures in place. Reflecting on the priorities of clients, 
maintaining payments to employees, grant recipients and suppliers were key, with resources flexed 
across the business to meet varying demands and the changing environment over the last 15 months. 

As a Company, we have learned a great deal from this new way of working which would not have been 
possible without the dedication, hard work and resilience of employees. These lessons will be used to 
help establish a 'new normal' as we start to think differently about how we will work in the future. 
Uncertainty remains and COVID-19 will be around for some time yet- the safety and wellbeing of our 
employees continues to be our overriding priority. 

To provide the necessary assurance to clients during this unparalleled time, a weekly contingency 
dashboard was established to provide key information as to how UK SBS was managing the critical 
priorities under COVID-19 restrictions, highlighting volumes and performance across all service areas. 
This dashboard complemented the monthly performance packs received by clients. Despite the 
challenges faced by the Company, the vast majority of key service indicators remained 'green' 
throughout. Further information on performance can be found in later sections of this report. 

Government Shared Services Strategy and UK SBS Transformation 

In March 2021, the Cabinet Office published their refreshed Government Shared Services (GSS) 
Strategy, the objectives of which are to provide: 

1. Better experience for all users with systems that are intuitive, easy to use and mobile-enabled. 
2. Efficiency and value for money through better systems and services which support productivity 

and reduce costs. 
3. _Standardised processes and data to support interoperability, making it easier to understand and 

compare corporate data. 

One element of the Strategy confirms the creation of five clusters of government departments each 
drawing their back-office business services from a single provider. UK SBS has been identified as the 
Shared Service Centre for the Policy Cluster. The aspiration is to migrate all departments in the cluster 
to a common set of processes and platforms. 
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The Policy Cluster is creating its 'Matrix Portfolio' of change to achieve the outcomes set out in the GSS 
Strategy. This includes a programme to establish the shared service centre for all eight departments 
and a programme to procure and implement a new cloud platform that wfll initially be adopted by four of 
the departments, replacing the current BEIS Oracle Estate (BOE) platform. 

In parallel, UKRl's SHARP programme will transform end-to-end services for them, replacing the current 
Research Council Oracle Estate (ROE) platform. 

UK SBS has commenced a transformation programme to ensure that it is ready, skilled and structured to 
meet these future demands, with three major strands: 

• Organisational Design - how we are structured to enable us to deliver efficiently and effectively 
all that is needed 

• Workforce Plan - how we secure the capacity, capability and skills needed for tomorrow's very 
different challenges. This includes general soft skills for all as well as more specialist skills; it also 
provides development opportunities 

• Behaviours and Culture - how our behaviours need to adapt to embrace the opportunities. This 
means developing a set of critical few behaviours to guide our actions 

Partnership Services Agreement, Service Target Operating Models and Business Planning 

Agreement to the Partnership Services Agreement (PSA) in place between UK SBS, BEIS and UKRI 
was reached in September 2020. It had been updated to reflect accurately the services provided, 
performance measures and the current operating environment. 

To support the effective development of our relationship with clients, two bodies were established, both 
with broad representation. The Partnership Service Management Board reviews our service delivery 
performance, identifies end-to-end efficiency opportunities and agrees operational changes to service 
schedules and associated performance measures. The Partnership Change Board provides a forum for 
cross client assessment, prioritisation and scheduling of change delivery. 

Alongside the challenges that COVI D-19 brought, customer numbers have increased by 11 % over the 
last year alone, with total users at 21,100 at the end of March 2021 (up from 19,000 at the start of the 
financial year), putting further pressure on Business As Usual (BAU) resource and budgets. Service 
Requests (SRs), Change Requests (CRs) and implementation of client change .programmes also 
remained steady, although the COVID-19 crisis had a detrimental impact on the delivery of capital 
projects planned for the year. 

A new Procurement Target Operating Model (PTOM) was designed and agreed between UK SBS, 
UKRI, UK Space Agency and BEIS, with all but the BEIS elements now fully implemented. As a result of 
the PTOM, a small number of employees were transferred across to the UKRI Procurement team. 

Business IT services were also reviewed in conjunction with UKRI and a programme of work was 
established to identify, consolidate and transfer services into UK SBS for delivery. This reduces the 
duplication of services between UK SBS and ·UKRI and provides greater consistency going forward. As a 
result, a small number of employees joined UK SBS from UKRI. T_he Service Desk migrated to a new 
cloud platform in ServiceNow which provides services to users across UK SBS and UKRI. 

The .UK SBS Business Plan was refreshed and agreed by owners in September 2020. The Board, in 
conjunction with the UK SBS Executive team; developed five key strategic themes that run through the 
multi-year plan. The first three themes focus directly on client and user-based change, with the other two 
being internal change themes within UK SBS. Each theme outlines a set of priorities for both operational 
service improvements and change, with agreed key strategic performance measures linked to the 
delivery of the themes. The UK SBS Roadmap, featuring both UK SBS and client programmes and 
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projects for delivery is continually reviewed and aligned to the Business Plan to ensure an accurate 
reflection of the ongoing and future schedule of programmes that align with our strategic direction. 

The diagram below provides a visual representation of UK SBS' vision, mission, strategic themes and 
underpinning values of the organisation, all of which align with the recently refreshed GSS Strategy. 

UK SBS Organisational Aims and Objectives 

Vision 

Mission 

Drivers of cllent 
originated 
change 

+ 
Addltlonal drivers 
of UKSBS 
change 

Our values 

The leading UK public sector business services provider, actively sought by government 
bodies 

To provide high quality and easy to use business services that add value to our partners, so 
they can focus on achieving the best outcomes for the British people and the UK economy 

Integrity Diversity 
One 

Team 
Versatility Empowerment 

The following sections summarise what we set out to achieve in 2020-21, our progress against each of 
the strategic themes, the supporting performance measures in place and priorities for the forthcoming 
year. With the updated business plan, the opportunity was taken to refresh the Key Performance 
Indicators (KPls), moving away from a focus on UK SBS process steps to a more end-to-end focus that 
reflects the overall service plus a focus on UK SBS corporate performance. As a result, there is no 
previous years' data for comparison. Some aspirational KPI measures have been included within the 
report; where strategic KPI targets are noted as 'TBC' or remain blank, they are yet to be finalised with 
clients. The relevant data will not be collated for reporting purposed until the KPI is agreed. 

Simplifying Processes - end-to-end value add for client functional leads 

Several activities brought significant benefits and value-add to our clients, customers and internally 
across a range of service areas in 2020-21, including: 

• Supporting UKRI harmonisation and enabling efficiencies 
• Driving forward continuous improvement initiatives such as the introduction of digitised forms, 

secure electronic sending of documents previously sent via Royal Mail and moving to a paperless 
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payments process, reducing time to prepare and send payment runs (over 30 a day) that 
enhance user experience, simplify processes and drive up operational efficiency 

• Creating and developing automation capability, targeting areas that lead to process 
improvements, reducing manual effort, increasing data quality and process consistency and 
improving the user experience 

• The design, implementation and management of a data warehouse, to control and centrally 
manage data services to allow effective 'single version of the truth' analytics across multiple 
information sources 

• Ensuring success of the Partnership Change Board, to support prioritisation and scheduling of 
change 

• Development of a single, modern and secure identity and access management (IDAM) service to 
be used across all UK SBS applications 

Some of these projects remain in progress and will continue into 2021-22, sitting alongside other 
roadmap activity planned for the ensuing year, including: 

• Further automation and other process improvements with a focus on joiners, movers and leavers 
and source to pay 

• The identification of opportunities for convergence to GSS global standards 
• Embedding best-practice information management practices within our organisational culture to 

improve our KIM maturity rating 
• Providing efficiencies and a more standard service across UKRI by extending existing service 

provision into Innovate UK 

The key performance indicators that support the delivery of the simplifying process strategic theme are 
outlined below: 

Target Actual 

KPI-SP-1 Payroll Error Rate (all errors) 0.5% I,.'' 

KPI-SP-2 Customer Service Calls Abandoned 5% 

KPI-SP-3 Customer Service Calls Fixed First Time tbc 91% 

KPI-SP-4 Recruitment Cycle Time tbc 
----

KPI-SP-5 MyCSP Error Rate 0.5% 

KPI-SP-6 Self Service Transactions tbc 

KPI-SP-7 Digital AP Invoice Processing (ROE only) tbc 40.3% 

The overall payroll error rate combines errors caused by UK SBS, clients and third parties. Whilst there 
was an improvement in overall performance from 2019-20 (0.74%), client-generated errors continue to 
be the major cause. UK SBS itself caused 26% of the reported payroll errors, a rate of 0.17% (below the 
0.2% service target agreed with clients). 

Maintaining and Improving Operational Efficiency - staying legal and reducing cost per user 

The updated Partnership Services Agreement was agreed by owners in September 2020, to capture the 
full range of services offered by UK SBS. This helps to manage the expectations of owners, clients and 
ourselves in a way that is professional and easy to understand. The opportunity was also taken to 
update sections in relation to the Data Protection Act 2018. 

To improve user ,experience and our operational efficiency, the procurement and finance contact centres 
were consolidated, providing a single place for service enquiries and a greater resilience through skills 
sharing. 
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2020-21 saw the successful implementation of ServiceNow, a standardised and leading-edge IT service 
management tool, across UK SBS and UKRI providing a self-service portal for employees to access IT 
support, reducing delays and disruptions. 

Looking forward to 2021-22, activities planned to support this strategic theme include: 

• The establishment of a data team to support client and UK SBS data activity and provide more 
efficient, insightful, real-time analytics to inform business decisions 

• Ongoing planning to support the 'policy' group and new client onboarding, with effective 
engagement on both the SHARP and "policy" group _rapid adopter programmes 

• Introducing standardised ways of working to operational teams and continuing with the internal 
quality and data security campaigns 

• Continuing to support clients to deliver any changes required as part of the transition from UK 
exiting the EU 

The key performance indicators that support the delivery of the maintaining and improving 
operational efficiency strategic theme are outlined below: 

Target Actual 

KPI-MIE-1 Contacts Resolved by Target Date 85% 191,711 

KPI-MIE-2 Cost per User tbc 

KPI-MIE-3 Payroll Transactions Processed 100% 

KPI-MIE-4 Supplier Prompt Payment 80% 

KPI-MIE-5 Purchase Requisitions Processed in 3WDs 95% 

The prompt payment performance is based on the full end to end process of the invoice lifecycle 
reflecting combined UK SBS and client performance which had been impacted by a changing mix of 
client activities due to COVID responses i.e. the invoicing performance amongst different supplier groups 
has not deteriorated vs previous years but the mix of those groups making up the measure has changed 
given COVID impacts. 

A significant number of projects, programmes and activities were delivered in year to enhance the user 
experience. The successful roll out of UK SBS Connect, an app that provides an improved user interface 
with the Oracle e-Business suite, was extended out to all BOE users. This allows users to update their 
personal details, book annual leave and check payslips whilst on the go via their mobile phone and 
resulted in 4160 overtime submissions, 3296 contact number changes, 931 disability data entries and 
over 64,000 page views of absence data, driving improvements in data quality. In 2020-21, further 
updates were added to improve accessibility and include diversity and disability data. 

The new recruitment tool, Taleo, was launched jointly with UKRI in 2019-20 with work completed in 
2020-21 to improve the user experience, enable greater transparency and enhance the Ml capabilities 
and reporting. Further exploitation is being managed through a joint Resourcing Project with UKRI. 

As we look to 2021-22, there are several initiatives and act.ivities planned to enhance the user 
experience further, including: 

~ Implementation of an integration service between the Agenda, a security screening service, and 
Taleo that ensures secure and streamlined process improvements 

• Extending the UK SBS Connect capability to improve accessibility and include overtime entry, 
expenses and team views 
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• Updating communication channels, including the introduction of a new BOE customer portal to 
significantly enhance user experience, security and accessibility compliance, and foster greater 
client self-serve · 

• The digitalisation and automation of key priority forms used by customers 
• Completing implementation of the PTOM and Business IT TOM to foster more efficient work 

The key performance indicators that support the delivery of the nnh,1ndnrJ user exp(ffieno--) strategic 
theme are outlined below: 

KPI-EUE-1 Client Satisfaction (quarterly) 

KPI-EUE-2 User Satisfaction 

KPI-EUE-3 Screen Click/ Time per Screen 

KPI-EUE-4 Time per Transaction Type • 

KPI-EUE-5a Oracle Availability (inc. OBIEE) 

KPI-EUE-5b Siebel & Je-S Availability 

KPI-EUE-5c Email Availability 

KPI-EUE-5d Network Availability 

Growing the Skills and Capability of our People 

Target 

3.0 

3.0 

tbc 

tbc 

98% 

98% 

98% 

98% 

Actual 

3.7 

3.5 

99.7.C/o 

91}.5% 

99.].Pf:, 

As mentioned earlier in this report, UK SBS has embarked on its own internal transformation programme 
to ensure our employees are ready, skilled and structured to meet the future challenges and 
opportunities for the Company. Supported by PwC, UK SBS developed a transformation. plan, which 
involved 12 weeks of work developing various scenarios, providing a critical friend's perspective on the 
challenges that lie ahead and outlining the actions the Company must take to meet them. The 
programme consists of three major strands: 

• Organisational design - including the adoption of a standard service delivery model to exploit 
the greater opportunities of self service and automation whilst seeking to limit the number of 
layers within the organisation to be flexible, and implementing a more standard approach to team 
structures and job titles 

• Workforce plan - assessing today's skills and understanding the gap to what we need for the 
future, to put in place the necessary learning and development whilst planning for future 
recruitment needs and adapting our approach to performance management, career development 
and reward 

• Behaviours and culture - a set of three critical behaviours have been developed to guide our 
actions: Be Curious, Take Action and Add Value 

Workshops with employees at all levels took place to share and discuss the critical behaviours, providing 
an opportunity for all to contribute and discuss what they mean to individuals and gather thoughts on. 
how they could be embedded within our culture. 

Work on the transformation programme continues into 2021 . 

Alongside the transformation, other initiatives expected to be delivered in 2021 onwards include: 

• The implementation of a new learning management system as a vehicle to provide material for 
skills changes to support the workforce plan 

• Development and launch of a new Diversity and Inclusion Strategy 
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• Formalising a multi-site strategy 
• Putting in place an action plan to retain benefits of flexible working experienced throughout the 

COVID-19 pandemic 

The key performance indicators that support the delivery of the growing the skills and capability of 
our people strategic theme are outlined below: 

KPI-GSC-1 Employee Turnover 

KPI-GSC-2 Employee Short Term Sick Absence 

KPI-GSC-3 Employees on Long Term Sick Absence (avg. per mth) 

KPI-GSC-4 

KPI-GSC-5 

Internal Promotion/ Retention Ratio 

Employee Engagement Score 

KPI-GSC-6 Employees with a Development Plan 

Target Actual 

20% 7.6'/~ 
3% 1 2°-:. ------tbc 8 

50% 84~/o 

A wide range of projects, programmes and initiatives were completed in year to support the fifth strategic 
theme to provide resilient infrastructure and security, including: 

• Enabling of the Document Retention Functionality within ROE and applying agreed retention 
rules with clients to meet GDPR requirements 

• The purchase and installation of an improved storage platform for OBIEE that is fully supported 
and provides enhanced performance to users 

• A refresh of our BOE hardware to ensure resilience and capability for any required future 
upgrades 

• Migration of the UK SBS Connect product to the latest Oracle-supported public cloud offering to 
provide improved security, reduced complexity and better stability 

Several projects that were started in 2020/21 are due to complete in 2022 including various upgrades to 
systems and platforms to ensure resilience and capability for potential future upgrades, applying modern 
tools to allow the most effective management of our networks, systems and information technology 
infrastructure, delivery of a programme of work to provide critical updates to our disaster recovery 
capabilities and other security-related upgrades. 

Other activities for 2021/22 include a review and update of the technology roadmap, developing 
architecture plans for a multi system environment, maintaining an increased focus on cyber threats, 
monitoring and mitigations and working with clients to clarify their business continuity requirements. 

The key performance indicators that support the delivery of the resllif1nt intrdsti'ucture ;,ind security 
strategic theme are outlined below: 

Target Actual ----------------------~-
KPI-RIS-1 Major Security Breaches 0 

KPI-RIS-2 Substantial Assurance on Core Controls ------
KPI-RIS-3 Audit Actions Overdue (avg. per mth) 0 
-----

KPI-RIS-4 Technology Roadmap Delivery 

KPI-RIS-5 Software Security Patches Outstan_di-'ng'---~--~--

The one major security breach reported related to an employee discovering some personal data on part 
of the UK SBS intranet that wa~ accessible by all employees. The incident response t~am rapidly fixed 
the issue within 24 hours. 
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Overall Service Performance 
User numbers continue to rise, with total users at 21,100 on 31 March 2021, up from 19,000 at the start 
of the financial year. 

Chart 1: User numbers - March 2018 - March 2021 
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Service focused Key Service Indicators (KSl's) - previously termed the UK SBS KPls - continue to be 
monitored, alongside the new Strategic Key Performance Indicators (KPls) linked to the five strategic 
themes. 91 % of KS ls were achieved for the whole of 2020/21. The chart below indicates the five-year 
trend of KSI performance. 

Chart 2: Service Performance KSls - Red, Amber, Green 
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Customer Complaints Received 
Customer complaints continued to remain very low in 2021/22, averaging one complaint for every 10,500 
contacts handled. · 

Chart 3: Custom.er complaints 2016 - 2021 
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Financial Performance 
The Company's financial results for the year are set out in the financial statements (page 40 onwards). 
The reported result for 2020/21 is a £364,000 loss (2019/20: £374,000 loss), including £1.7 million cost 
of depreciation and amortisation (2019/20: £1.4 million). The Company does not operate with the 
intention of making a profit. 

The net asset value at 31 March 2021 was £2.3million (31 March 2020: £2.7 million). Further details are 
set out on page 41 of the financial statements. Details of the non-current assets are set out in note 6 to 
the financial statements. 

Delivery of Change Programmes 
The UK SBS Business Change department (BCD) successfully delivered or assisted with the delivery of 
94 projects in 2020/21 (138 in 2019/20) despite the impact on working from home. The department 
delivers a portfolio of change projects providing clear prioritisation, management, reporting and resource 
allocation. As indicated earlier in this report, the projects within the portfolio are many and varied 
including client requested change, business development projects, technology portfolio improvement and 
service transfers. 

In 2018/19, a new change management process was introduced supported by the establishment of an 
internal Investment, Appraisal and Change Committee. During 2020/21 this Committee has continued to 
strengthen the oversight of the change portfolio., to ensure alignment with UK SBS and clients' 
road maps. To help make the change process sjmpler for clients, the categories used for levels of change 
will be replaced with two change types in 2021/22 - standard and complex. This will allow for early, " 
comprehensive communications to clients on the provision of cost and delivery estimates and will 
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introduce scheduling activities for all change requests. All newly submitted standard changes will also 
now require the completion of an impact assessment. 

The Partnership Change Board has worked together to produce a pipeline of change and a review of the 
scheduling of all change takes place at the bi-monthly meetings. 

The number of CRs from owners and from within UK SBS remained high in both numbers and 
complexity. 

Chart 4: Number of CRs raised 2019 - 2021 
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Change Portal 
During 2019/20 a change portal was developed which allows members of the PCB, the respective client 
Change Boards, and UK SBS employees to review on a PC or mobile device the current status of any 
change request. In addition, Power Bl reports provide live dashboard information on the performance, 
status and detail of the change request portfolio. 

Service Exits 
There were no service exits in 2020/21 . 

Data Protection Act 2018 and Data Security 
Following the implementation of the new Gl;)PR and Data ·Protection legislation in May 2018, we h~ve 
continued on our journey to strengthen data protection and mature our wider information management. 
The establishment of an internal programme, Securing our Data and Reputation (SoDaR), brings 
together the key work strands to provide a more holistic view of data management across the Company. 
Several critical change requests are underway that support the SoDaR programme, including a migration 
from SharePoint On Prem to SharePoint Oi:iline, agreeing and implementing a CRM retention policy and 
purging historical data, ongoing activities to support the encryption of data at rest and implementatiqn 
role based access controls. The SoDaR programme has also established an engagement plan to better 
link policy and process to culture and behaviour and has recently launched a monthly SoDaR employee 
newsletter. 
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Another key part of this work is the implementation of ISO 27001. Plans are in place to fully implement 
the necessary service delivery controls, with initial certification expected to be achieved in 2021. 

Activity continues to complete Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIAs) for both new and existing 
projects and programmes, as well as legacy DPIAs for systems and platforms. 

UK SBS continues to work towards full implementation of the legislative requirements where possible, 
whilst remaining cognisant of the technical barriers that exist. The Audit Committee receive regular 
updates on areas of non-compliance and the mitigating actions in place. 

Our People 
Our employees are essential to all that we do and work together to deliver our key objectives. This year, 
in meeting the requirements of our clients, UK SBS has steadily increased its headcount. The year 
began with 582 employees and has grown to 596 (excluding contractors). 

UK SBS has continued to build on three challenges in to further embed our Values in all that we do. 

• Integrity 
• Diversity 
• One Team 
• Versatility 
• Empowerment 

Leadership - the right people, right place, with the right capabilities 

We have continued to develop our leadership capability in the introduction of the bronze leadership 
programme which was succes~fully rolled out within UK SBS. The programme, over a period of six 
months, has equipped junior leaders with practical skills be more effective in their roles. The training 
developed and delivered internally has seen one cohort of managers complete the programme and a 
further three cohorts are in progress and planned. 

Effectiveness - the right resources, right flexibility, right skills 

We continue to review and refresh the recruitment process to ensure we are promoting the benefits of 
working for UK SBS and Working across our three sites of Swindon, Newport, and Billingham helps us 
to fill roles and give development opportunities. We continue to build on the su~cessful apprenticeship 
scheme in Business Administration and Human Resources and this has enabled us to provide additional 
'business as usual' support while giving valuable opportunities and mutual benefits to young people. We 
further have expanded our apprenticeships to include IT and to include all of our sites. 

Engagement - right attitudes, right perceptions, right results 

Our employee survey, completed every six months, continues to act as a regular temperature check; the 
insights of which assists our senior leaders to steer actions at corporate, directorate and team level. The 
trends remain positive and, together with the slowing of our turnover, demonstrates a positive outlook. 
The May 2021 highlights were: 

• 62% of employees participated in the survey 
• 87% of respondents agreed they could rely on others in their team 
• 90% of respondents agreed they give consideration as to how our services could be improved 

and share ideas with their managers or senior managers 
• 90% of respondents agreed they fully support the five new UK SBS values ana they guide their 

behaviours and actions 
• 87% of respondents agreed they speak positively about the services UK SBS provides 
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• 85% of respondents agree they are satisfied with working for UK SBS 

Training and development opportunities continue as a strong feature for employees. We provide a mix of 
mandatory and bespoke training, ensuring legal compliance, skills and knowledge development and 
support for individual needs and aspirations. This includes on the job coaching, professional qualification 
support, in-house and external training, and delivered in a range of ways, including face to face and e
Learning. 

There is a strong commitment to open, transparent and timely employee communications, with regular 
team briefs, varied employee engagement opportunities, including small group discussions with the CEO 
and weekly news updates. To ensure.employees continued to be kept up to date during the COVID-19 
pandemic and,whilst working remotely, a new, twice-weekly newsletter email was launched. 

Strategic Workforce Plan 
Corporate HR have commenced work to develop the Strategic Workforce Plan (SWP) with the aim to 
informing the delivery of the organisation of the future by ensuring it is correctly resourced in both 
capacity and capability. Work has commenced on the following components. 

• Resource Plan 
• Performance Management and Training Needs Analysis 
• Reward 
• Communications 

Diversity 
At 31 March 2021, the numbers of males and females in the Company were as follows: 

Males Females 

Board (excluding the Chief Executive) 3 3 

Executive Team (including the Chief Executive) 5 2 

Employees (excluding Executive Team) 236 360 

The proportion of employees who have elected to be identified as being from an ethnic minority is 
currently 10.7% (2019/20 10.1%). 

UK SBS published its gender pay gap report. The gender pay gap is the differences in the average pay 
between men and women in an organisation over a period of time no matter what the role is. In March 
2020, the mean pay gap for UK SBS was 22.4%. This is a 2% decrease in the year on year Male to 
Female pay gap with males being paid on average 22% an hour more than Females. The Gender Pay 
Gap report, published on the UK SBS website, outlines the details of the plan to work towards 
addressing the pay gap and will form part of the HR strategy going forward. The UK SBS Diversity and 
Inclusion Group continues to form part of the commitment to achieving and advancing equality. 

Employee Health 
During 2020/21 the average number of working days lost through recorded sickness absence was 2.4% 
(2019/20: 3.0%, ). The figure has been recorded as a percentage to more accurately reflect part time 
employee data. 

Internal Governance 
An internal Risk, Assurance and Security Committee was established in March 2020 to sit alongside the 
three existing internal committees (the Investment, Appraisal and Change Committee, People and 
Engagement Committee and Operations Committee) and provide Executive level oversight of the 

15 



' . 

Company's risk management, audit, internal control, resilience and protective security activities. Work of 
the committee includes the identification of new corporate risks, reviewing risk appetites and tolerances, 
considering lessons learned from incidents or events and directing methods for improvement. 

Meetings of the Senior Leadership Group and Middle Leadership Group were held throughout 2020/21 
to enable two-way engagement on priorities and future planning for the organisation. 

Further information on the Executive structure and Committees can be found in the Annual Governance 
Statement on pages 24-30. 

Managing Risks and Controls 
The Government Internal Audit Agency (GIM) continues to provide the Company's internal audit 
function and in 2020/21 undertook 12 audits. An overall assurance opinion of 'Moderate' was issued by 
the GIM Head of Internal Audit, reflecting the results of audits which have consistently demonstrated 
continued effective operation of the Company's governance and risk management processes. 

The GIM Head of Internal Audit's annual report is summarised in the Annual Governance Statement, 
noting management had addressed those concerns raised the previous year and that controls around 
core processes were found to be on an upward trajectory. 

The Company's Corporate Risk Register is reviewed at every Board and Audit Committee meeting. Each 
department maintains its own departmental risk register, capturing risks to department-specific activity 
and objectives, as well as a procedural-driven Risk and Control framework. Processes are in place to 
escalate risks from departmental to the corporate risk register as and when necessary. 

A separate COVID-19 risk register was established to· assist with identifying and mitigating the service, 
operational and people risks created by the pandemic. The significance and complexity of the crisis 
created numerous near-term risks for UK SBS that required immediate and daily attention including the 
potential for significant loss of people (capacity), service demands and maintaining physical and mental 
wellbeing. Regular updates were provided to the Audit Committee throughout the year. 

A number of risks have been successfully mitigated throughout the year, including those relating to our 
response to COVID-19, the successful negotiation of the Oracle licence extension, GDPR compliance 
and ineffective core controls. However, despite ongoing mitigating activity, some corporate risks remain 
out of tolerance on the Corporate Risk Register for 2021/22; Cyber-attack (information security) and the 
sustainability of BOE, ROE and other service platforms beyond May 2023. Risk response plans have 
been developed and actions will continue throughout the year to continue to mitigate these evolving and 
continuing risks. 

Managing Our Footprint 
The UK SBS Corporate Social Responsibility Policy sets out the principles for managing our 
environmental impact. 

Travel 
The following table shows expenditure on total travel over the last five years. From 2018/19 to 2019/20, 
there was a 9% decrease in annual travel cost, despite an increase in FTE. In 2020/21, COVID-19 
restrictions led to a marked decrease in travel cost. 

Travel cost 
201-6/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 

Cast FT:E1 Cost FTE* CD.~~ FliEW Ce-sf Flle CCilsit FftE'i" 
({~ {£~QI,, (\D!Ot ((E_00.0)} ((e000Jl 

339 532.6 399 482.1 286 485 260 561 63 559 
* FTE numbers include contractors 
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In 2020/21, our people travelled approximately seven thousand km on Company business and all of this 
was undertaken by car. 

Paper 
The Company uses 75% recycled A4 and A3 paper (made from post-consumer waste using low CO2 

production methods). 

Buildings 
UK SBS operates over three sites: Polaris House, Swindon (Head Office accommodating over 80% of 
our.people), Concept House, Newport and Queensway House, Billingham. All sites are owned or 
managed by other BEIS Partner Organisations who report on energy usage, water consumption and 
waste generation in their Annual Reports. The Company complies with energy, water and waste 
management measures in operation at each site. 

Polaris House is shared premises occupied by UKRI, UK Space Agency, Government Internal Audit 
Agency, Government Property Agency and UK SBS and is managed by UKRl's Joint Building 
Operations Services (JBOS). The building has been awarded, and implements, an Environmental 
Management system (EMS) via ISO 14001 and successfully retained its ISO 14001 accreditation in April 
2021. JBOS is responsible for the EMS and environmental aspects of the campus. 

In 2019/20, videoconferencing facilities at all three sites were greatly enhanced. This increased capacity 
for colleagues to join meetings remotely, rather than travelling to between offices or to other locations for 
meetings, helping to reduce carbon emissions from travel. It has also provided the opportunity for cross
site team meetings, breaking down silos and increasing collaboration. COVID-19 has resulted in the vast 
majority of UK SBS employees working from home since March 2020 and videoconferencing has played 
a key role in enabling this. As we look to our new ways of working and implementing a hybrid working 
model, videoconferencing will become a new low-carbon standard way of working across UK SBS in the 
fu~re. · · 

With the vast majority of Polaris House employees working from home since March 2020, the following 
savings on usage compared to the previous financial year have been achieved: 

• Electricity: 27.29% 
• Gas: 9.51% 
• Water: 10.61% 

All waste produced at Polaris House is reused, recycled or incinerated with energy recovery. Reporting 
on the actual quantities of waste disposal will not be available until after the publication of this document. 

Due to the challenging nature of 2020/21, and with few people working from the office on a regular basis, 
most initiatives were paused. However, three additional EV chargers have been installed in the multi
storey car park for employees to use with plans to implement more in the coming year. 

UK SBS is fully committed to a programme of review and reduction in the use of energy, finite resources 
and waste disposal. 

The majority of our carbon emissions emanate from the use of mains supplied electricity within our head 
office at Polaris House, and it is this resource that when targeted with energy saving technologies will 
return the highest level of reductions. The'Company looks forward to working With UKRI and other 
Polaris House tenants in taking forward plans to reduce our individual and collective footprints. 
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Section 172 Reporting 
The Directors are bound by their duties under the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) and the manner in 
which these have been discharged, particularly their duty to promote the success of the Company for the 
benefit of its members as a whole. A training workshop on directors' duties was last provided to the 
Board in 2018 following a number of resignations and newly appointed Board directors. Whilst UK SBS 
is not required to report under the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018, it is considered a large private 
company under the Act and this section reflects some of the key themes of the new governance and 
reporting regulations. 

As a Public Contract Regulations (PCR) Regulation 12 Company, there is a unique relationship between 
the Board and Shareholders, with owner nominated representatives appointed to the Board alongside 
independent directors. The Board recognises the importance of a continuing effective dialogue with 
Shareholders and the sharing of relevant information to ensure that the strategy and objectives of the 
Company are clearly articulated and understood by all. This also allows for the opportunity for feedback 
and to address any questions or issues raised and for all members to be treated fairly 

In a large organisation such as UK SBS, the directors fulfil their duties partly through a governance 
framework that delegates day-to-day decision making to the CEO, Executive Team and other employees 
of the Company. The wider impacts of any decisions taken are considered and underpinned by the 
culture, values and standards exhibited within the organisation. 

Risk Management, Governance and Decision-Making 
UK SBS provides a range of critical services to our clients and customers, in particular the payment of 
suppliers, people and grants. It is vital that the Company continually identifies, evaluates, manages and 
mitigates risks. Further information on the risks faced by the Company and how they are managed can 
be found on page 16 and within the Annual Governance Statement. 

Each year, the Board undertakes an in-depth review of the UK SBS Business Plan for the following three 
years. Once agreed by the Board and Shareholders, this provides the basis for resourcing plans, 
financial budgets and sets the strategic direction for the Company. In the development of Business Plan, 
the Board has regard to a variety of matters including the interests of various stakeholders and the long
term reputational effects of decisions taken. The CEO is responsible for delivering the agreed Business 
Plan and strategy, with authority delegated to the Executive team as appropriate to make relevant 
decisions subject to the values of the Company. 

Our People 
The employees of UK SBS are its most valuable asset and are central to the long-term success of the 
Company. The culture, values and standards underpin the way in which UK SBS delivers service and 
are the key elements to maintaining a high standard of business conduct and quality services. The Board 
supports the CEO in embedding the right culture to deliver long-term success. The Board sets the 
Company values; these were refreshed in 2019 via a bottom-up approach, driven by our employees' 
voices and views through a series of workshops and facilitated sessions. An employee engagement 
survey is released twice a year, the results of which are considered by the directors and, together with 
the Executive team, appropriate actions are put in place. The Board reviews and agrees the UK SBS 
Code of Conduct policy on an annual basis. 

All employees participate in an annual performance review, identifying relevant opportunities for 
developing and retaining talent. Recognising the upcoming opportunities and challenges for the 
Company as a result of the SHARP and Policy cluster group rapid adopters programmes, the workforce 
plan will be key to ensuring that the Company is equipped with the right skills and ta.lent to deliver 
success in the future. 

Further information on our people, diversity, values, culture and engagement with the Trade Unions can 
be found on pages 14-15 and within the Directors' Report. 
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Relationships with Customers and Clients 
Ultimately, our customers and clients are our owners; the fundamental principle for the existence of UK 
SBS is to provide effective and efficient back office services to its customers. UK SBS does not seek to 
make a profit and operates on a cost recovery basis. The Company has embedded a partnered 
approach in its relationships with clients and the refreshed Partnership Services Agreement agreed by 
the Board and clients in September 2020 clarified and strengthened this approach. This is supported by 
the Partnership Change Board and the Partnership Service Management Board. 

In 2019, customer feedback and satisfaction scores were included as part of the wider performance pack 
considered by the Board at each meeting, along with key client issues. As part of the 2020-2023 
Business Plan review and an internal audit report, the service measures were refreshed with full client 
involvement to reflect the end to end service. These strategic Key Performance Indicators (KPls) provide 
the information required to make accurate deductions of service performance from both an internal and 
client perspective. Key Service Indicators (KSls) that are focussed on key UK SBS process steps only 
continue to be monitored. UK SBS also works with clients to understand, prioritise, schedule and 
implement their key change activities, projects and programmes through the Partnership Change Board 
(PCB). 

Further information on client relationships and interactions can be found within the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

Communities and the Environment 
The Board approves the Corporate Social Responsibility policy as part of its annual governance review. 
Given the priority placed by our owners and clients on achieving net zero and the wider sustainability 
agenda, UK SBS is further developing its approach to this important issue. 

UK SBS directors have regard to the impact of the Company's operations on the environment. In light of 
COVID-19 and the ways in which employees altered their working practices to adapt, the Board and 
Executive team are considering those changes that can be taken forward as part of the new ways of 
working, including the use of more video-conferencing in lieu of travelling between the three sites or 
visiting clients. Details on further environmental considerations can be found on pages 16-18. 

Focusing on the Future 
UK SBS is committed to working in partnership with our owners to provide modern, stable, efficient and 
effective services. Greater agility and adaptability will ensure responsiveness to clients ' changing 
requirements and transformation programmes whilst modernising and replacing the underlying 
technology platforms. UK SBS will continue to work with and support both owners in the development of 
their new solution programmes whilst building upon the strong working relationships already formed with 
our clients to continue to meet their service delivery expectations now and in the future. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Richard Semple, Chief Executive Officer 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 26 August 2021 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

UK Shared Business Services Ltd is a company limited by shares providing a range of services to its 
Shareholders, all of which are public bodies. Whilst changes to our owners' strategies have potentially 
significant implications for the Company, our prime objectives remain the same - to deliver efficient, 
effective and value for money services. 

The Board of Directors 
UK SBS Board membership was last reviewed in October 2017 to ensure appropriate governance was in 
place following a number of resignations and to reflect the impending changes in ownership and control 
brought about by the creatio.n of UKRI. The majority of Board members are appointed from owner 
organisations to comply with Regulation 12 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, the framework 
through which UK SBS provides services to its owners. 

The following table identifies all the Company Directors that held office during the accounting period to 
the date of the report. 

Date Appointed In post/date resigned 
Chair 
Timothy Kniqhton1· 31 October 2015 In post 
Executive Directors 
Richard Semple 1 May 2018 In post 
Non-Executive Directors 
Neil Phimister 17 October 2017 Resigned 2 Auqust 2021 
Ruth Elliot 1 April 2018 In post 
Graham McAlister 1 April 2018 In post 
Alice Hurrell 27 September 2018 In post 
Emma Ferquson-Gould 25 March 2019 Resiqned 31 March 2021 
Nick Sammons 30 March 2021 In post 

1. Timothy Knighton was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director from 26 March 2015 and was 
appointed by the Shareholders as the Board Chair from 31 October 2015. 

Victoria McMyn was appointed as a Board member on 3 Augusf 2021. 

A recruitment campaign for a new Chairman was launched in autumn 2020. The successful candidate, 
John Clarke, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director following unanimous agreement of the 
Shareholders on 16 June 2021. Tim Knighton stood down as Chair on 31 July 2021 and John Clarke 
was appointed as Chair from 1 August 2021. 

Meetings of the Board and its Committees 
The Company's governance structure and composition and operation of the Board are described within 
the Annual Governance Statement on pages 24-30, which forms part of this Directors' Report. 

The Board meets formally every other month. Meeting frequency, membership and focus of each of the 
Board Committees is se.t out below: 

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee meets five times a year. In 2020/21, the Committee was attended by Neil Phimister 
(Chairman), Graham McAlister, Kim Humberstone (co-opted member, re-appointed $eptember 2020) 
and Victoda McMyn (co-opted member, appointed June 2020). The Audit Committee meetings are also 
attended by exterf!al (National Audit Office (NAO)) and internal (GIAA) audit. Throughout the year, the 
Committee's work included, inter a/ia, approving the internal audit plan and receiving all completed audit 
reports, reviewing Corporate and Departmental risk registers, monitoring the implementation of audit 
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recommendations, providing assurance to the Board on the effectiveness of risk managements controls 
and systems and reviewing reports of fraud and whistleblowing policies. 
Remuneration and/or Nominations Committee 
The Board meets as the Remuneration and/or Nominations Committee as and when required to consider 
and advise the Board on remuneration and terms of conditions for Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors. The Board met twice as the Remuneration Committee in 2020/21. 

Independent Directors 
In accordance with the Company's constitutional documents that were agreed by Shareholders in August 
2018, all independent Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors are appointed by unanimous 
decision of the Shareholders. Owner nominated Non-Executive Directors are appointed by unanimous 
decision of the Board. 

For. the period 1 April 2020 - 31 March 2021, those Non-Executive Directors considered by the Board to 
be independent were Timothy Knighton and Graham McAlister. 

Performance Evaluation of the Board 
A formal annual review was undertaken over the summer. The performance of the Board was evaluated 
and included feedback from both Board members and the Executive team. The key points of the 
evaluation results are noted within the Annual Governance Statement on page 24. The Audit Committee 
also undertook an annual review of its effectiveness and individual Committee members' performance. 

Dividends 
No dividends were paid on ordinary shares during the period and the Directors do not recommend a 
payment of a final ordinary dividend. · 

Political and Charitable Contributions 
The Company made no political donations or incurred any political expenditure during the period. The 
Company made no charitable donations during the period. 

Employment of Disabled People 
UK SBS aims to create a productive environment, representative of and responsive to different cultures 
and groups, where the contributions of all employees, agency workers and contractors are recognised 
and valued and everyone has an equal chance to succeed. As such, UK SBS is committed to an active 
and inclusive approach to equality, which supports and encourages all under-represented groups, 
promotes an inclusive culture, and values diversity. The UK SBS Diversity and Inclusion Group 
continues as an employee group to share views and contribute ideas to shape and drive activities to 
encourage further inclusiveness. 

The Company's Inclusiveness Policy applies to all aspects of employment, including recruitment, terms 
and conditions of work, training and development, promotion, performance management, grievance, 
discipline and treatment of workers when their contract of employment ends. Applications fo'r 
employment by disabled people are welcome and are always fully considered. In the event of an 
employee becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Company 
continues and that appropriate support is provided. The Company received Disability Confident Level 2 
accreditation in November 2018. 

Employee Communications and Engagement 
UK SBS has a number of established communication channels in place to ensure that any information 
on matters of concern to our employees is communicated clearly, ,effectively and timely. Internal 
channels fqcused on employees include face-to-face engagement.Town Halls, emails, instant 
messaging, videoconferencing, TV screens, the intranet, posters and printed materials. The 
Communications Team is responsible for maintaining the Communications Policy and guidance and 
dissemination of information via the appropriate channels. 
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Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic and with·most employees working remotely, communications have 
been of paramount importance. UK SBS launched Take 5, an all employee email sent twice a week to 
round up the weeks' news and important messages. Team Brief, a tool/ document used by managers 
has continued to be produced throughout COVID-19 to ensure consistent messaging is being relayed to 
alt employees. 

The Trade Unions (TUs) are consulted when considering any policy changes or decisions that may 
impact UK SBS employees. Regular meetings take place between Corporate HR, the CEO and the TUs 
to share updates on the strategic direction of the Company, operational I business as usual information 
and to ensure the views of the employees are considered when making decisions that may affect their 
interests. 

Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement 
In accordance with Section 54 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015, the UK SBS statement on slavery and 
human trafficking as agreed by the Board has been published on the UK SBS website. 

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities 
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements. in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations. 

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financia1 year. Under that 
law, the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 
Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the 
Company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to: 

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently; 
• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• state that the financial statements comply with IFRS; 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume 

that the Company will continue in business. 

The directors are responsible for keeping accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the 
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. 
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable 
steps for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. 

Statement as to Disclosure of Information to Auditors 
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the 
Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and each director has taken all the 
steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information. 
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Auditors 
The Comptroller and Auditor General (National Audit Office) was re-appointed as auditor during the 
period, under Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006. 

(Z_ ~f of the Board 

Richard Semple, Chief xecutive Officer 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 26 August 2021 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2020/21 

The UK Shared Business Services Ltd (UK SBS) Board is accountable to shareholders for ensuring that 
the Company operates governance and internal controls that are fit for purpose and in accordance with 
applicable legislation. As well as being a company limited by shares, UK SBS is a public body and is 
required. to comply with _applicable Government and Departmental policies, instructions and guidance. 
Central to this is compliance with Managing Public Money to ensure that public money is safeguarded, 
properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. 

The UK SBS Board has delegated responsibility for the preparation of this Annual Governance 
Statement to the UK SBS Chief Executive, who is also a Company Director, Board member and the UK 
SBS Accounting Officer. The Statement has been signed by the Chief Executive on behalf of the Board 
following Board consideration and agreement. 

The Purpose of the Governance Statement 
The Governance Statement forms part of the Company's Annual Report and Accounts as a record of the 
stewardship of the Company by the Board and Executive. It outlines the Company's governance, 
business and control structures and highlights changes implemented and challenges addressed during 
the year. 

Corporate Governance Framework 
UK SBS is a company limited by shares wholly owned by the Department for Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy (BEIS) and UK Research and Innovation (UKRI). It is classified within the public 
sector and operates as a Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015) Regulation 12 entity. 

The Shareholders' Agreement and Articles of Association were last reviewed and agreed by the 
Shareholders in August 2018. Also central to the running of the Company, alongside the constitutional 
documents, is the corporate governance framework including Board and Committee terms of reference, 
a corporate scheme of delegation, corporate policies and the sponsorship framework with BEIS. 

The Business Services Agreement, now renamed as the Partnership Services Agreement (PSA), was 
reviewed, updated and agreed with all clients in September 2020. Substantial changes were made to 
reflect both developments in the professional operational governance of service delivery and to refocus 
on an overall partnership approach to the relationship with BEIS and UKRI. 

Change Programmes 
Alongside the delivery of business as usual (BAU) services, UK SBS has experienced a significant 
increase in change activities both internally and across the client base. 

Following the agreement in March 2020 for BEIS and UKRI to progress separate approaches to new 
platform solutions for the provision of HR and Finance services, two programmes of work were 
established. The UKRI Services for HR, Accounting, Reporting and Procurement (SHARP) programme 
has developed an outline business case to converge all nine councils and move to a new platform 
solution, with Outline Business Case approvals expected to be received in summer 2021. 

In 2020, the Future Shared Services 2 (FSSii) programme had re-established and progressed to the 
point of procurement when the Cabinet Office Government Shared Services (GSS) Strategy review was 
announced, pausing all government-wide procurements for new platform solutions. The refreshed GSS 
Strategy looks to group government departments into five clusters, each drawing their back-office 
business services from a single service provider, working on common business processes, data 

._ , standards and performance metrics. One of these clusters will consist of a number of smaller policy 
departments, including BEIS, with UK SBS as the proposed service provider. The Policy Cluster is 
creating its 'Matrix Portfolio' of change to achieve the outcomes set out in the GSS Strategy. 
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This is a significant strategic opportunity for the Company, aligning to our 2021-2024 business plan 
ambitions and recently refreshed vision. UK SBS will continue to provide stable and secure services to 
our existing clients and have a clear focus on maintaining high quality BAU services, whilst working 
closely with UKRI and BEIS to input, support and progress vital preparation work for both the SHARP 
and future cluster programmes. 

Several other major projects and programmes were completed in 2020/21 that also required significant 
UK SBS resource and technical input to implement, including: 

• The go-live of the Grants Finance System, de-coupling Siebel from the Research Council Oracle 
Estate (ROE) project accounting module, delivering a wide range of improvements in functionality; 

• Successful implementation of Taleo, a new recruitment/ careers portal for UKRI and UK SBS; and 
• Extended functionality of the UK SBS Connect App for BEIS, DIT, INSS and UKSA users. 

A detailed three-year roadmap charts out the Company's change activities, providing a framework for 
project delivery and is updated on an annual basis to align with the Business Plan. Through its 
established portfolio approach, UK SBS will continue to monitor the pressure on key resources and 
teams to safeguard the impact of delivering change and / or impacting on service delivery. 

Internal Governance 
The internal governance structure was strengthened in 2020/21 with the establishment of the Risk, 
Assurance and Security Committee (RASC) to sit alongside the Investment, Appraisal and Change 
Committee (IACC), Operations Committee (OC) and the People and Engagement Committee (PEC). 
The RASC provides oversight of UK SBS's risk assessment and mitigation planning, assurance, audit 
planning and follow-up, information security and business resilience. 

The Securing our Data and Reputation (SoDaR) programme underwent a refresh in 2020 to provide the 
necessary senior oversight needed to drive the initiatives forward throughout the business, supported by 
a newly appointed programme manager. The programme looks to encompass all data and security 
related projects including ISO 27001 certification, Data Protection legislation (including the Data 
Protection Act 2018 and UK GDPR) and HMG Knowledge and Information Management principles. 

Work continues towards achieving ISO 27001 certification with the target for certification currently set for 
the end of 2021. It will bring greater coherence to working practices and enhance the Company's control 
framework. 

The UK 585 Board Structure and Operation 
No significant changes were· made to the composition of the UK SBS Board in 2020/21. To ensure 
compliance with Regulation 12 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, which provides the framework 
through which UK SBS delivers services to its owners, the majority of the Board is comprised of owner
nominated Non-Executive Directors (NEDs). 

The UK SBS corporate governance structure consists of a Board, primarily comprised of owner 
representation, and an Audit Committee. The Board meets as a Remuneration and/or Nominations 
Committee when circumstances require, rather than maintaining separate committees. 

The roles and responsibilities of the Board and the Audit Committee are defined within the Company's 
Articles. Their terms of reference were last agreed by the Board on 29 September 2020. 

The Board comprises seven members as follows: 

• Two independent NEDs, with one having been appointed by the shareholders as the Board 
Chairman; 

• Four NEDs from owner organisations; and 
• One Executive Director (the UK SBS Chief Executive). 
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All of the Company's Directors acknowledge and understand fully their responsibilities. 

In September 2020, as part of its Annual Governance Review (AGR), the Board reviewed corporate 
policies, committee structure, membership and terms of reference to ensure alignment with the 
constitution. 

To support the AGR, the Board completed its annual performance evaluation; individual NED 
performance reviews were undertaken by the Chair with the Board considering the results of the 
collective Board performance evaluation as a whole. The key outcomes from the 2020/21 performance 
evaluation include: 

• Recognition that the Board was working better together and more collaboratively with shareholders 
and key stakeholders to help align strategies 

• Further strategic offsite / away day meetings to be scheduled at relevant times to focus on specific 
areas in more depth and / or consider horizon scanning 

• Inviting external people to Board meetings to provide updates on specific topics, enabling deeper 
understandings and informing discussions 

While not obliged to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board has agreed that they 
will consider and apply the guidance where possible and practicable within the context of the Company's 
operating environment and will not report on how it has been applied. 

Set out below is a record of Board membership and Board and Audit Committee attendance from 1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2021. 

2020/21 Attendance/Meetings eliqible to attend 

Name of Board Member Board Audit Committee 

Tim Knighton (Chairman) 6/6 

Ruth Elliot 6/6 

Neil Phimister 6/6 5/5 

Graham McAlister 6/6 5/5 
. 

Alice Hurrell 4/6 

Emma Fen::iuson-Gould 3/6 

Richard Semple (Chief Executive) 6/6 

Kim Humberstone (co-opted member of the Audit Committee) 5/5 

Victoria McMyn (co-opted member of the Audit Committee) 4/4 

The Shareholders agreed to extend Tim Knighton's appointment for a further six months, until 30 
September 2021. A recruitment campaign for a new Chairman of the Board was launched in autumn 
2020. The successful candidate, John Clarke, was appointed as a Non-Executive Director following 
unanimous agreement of the Shareholders on 16 June 2021. Tim Knighton will step down as Chair on 
31 July 2021 witl) John to be appointed as Chair from 1 August 2021. · 

The shareholder representatives and the Chair met three times in 2020/21 to discuss the strategic 
priorities and performance)of UK SBS and ensure alignment of the organisations' strategies . 

. , ,· 

The Board met twice as the Remuneration and Nominations Committee in 2020/21 to review and agree 
the· annual pay award and consider a diversity and pay report. 
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The Audit Committee is independent of management and comprises two NEDs, one of whom is 
appointed as the Chairman, and two external members, one of which was appointed in 2020 to 
strengthen the Committee in response to the 2019//20 performance evaluation results. Representatives 
from the Company's external auditors (National Audit Office, NAO) and internal auditors (Government 
Internal Audit Agency, GIAA) are invited to attend meetings. The UK SBS Chief Executive (as SIRO) and 
the Data Protection Officer are invited to attend and report to the Audit Committee. The Committee met 
five times in 2020/21, at each meeting considering inter alia, completed audit reports and the Company's 
Risk Register, monitoring management responses to, and progress with, implementation of audit 
recommendations, receiving detailed presentations on risks, monitoring health and safety and the taking 
of a risk-based approach to the consideration of the Company's budget and financial management. 

The Committee provides feedback to Board meetings on all relevant audit, risk and control issues and 
conducts a formal annual review of its own effectiveness, with the last such review having been 
completed in September 2020. 

Customer Governance 
Two partner-led Boards were established in 2019/20. Both are chaired by an alternating owner 
representative. The Partnership Change Board (PCB) (replacing the Business Design Authority) meets 
monthly and agrees the prioritisation of Change Requests (CRs) across all client organisations and UK 
SBS, provides delivery oversight, reviews new and current services provided by UK SBS and reviews 
changes to partner or customer process or policy. The Partnership Service Management Board (PSMB) 
meets bi-monthly and provides performance assess·ment of current end-to-end services specified in the 
Partnership Services Agreement (PSA). 

Additionally, service management reviews operate on an individual client basis with the day-to-day, end
to-end service relationship maintained between service delivery teams and the clients' corporate 
functions. 

To support these engagements, UK SBS holds periodic review meetings with client organisations on a 
mutually agreed frequency - anything between monthly and annually. These meetings provide an 
opportunity for customers to engage with UK SBS about issues or queries relating to any aspect of 
service taken by the client. 

The separation of high-level Business Plan success measures and operational service performance 
indicators was agreed to allow the UK SBS Board the opportunity to review strategic progress alongside 
operational delivery measures. This also provides the PSMB with the flexibility to review and adapt 
performance indicators to address immediate challenges and ensure their relevance. A new 
performance management report pack has been designed and built using PowerBI , enabling users to 
drill down into specific areas of concern or interest and allowing for more dynamic visualisation of 
performance measures. 

Customer feedback mechanisms exist requesting individual customers to rate the service that they have 
received and provide any comments on the completion of each service request. On a monthly basis, UK 
SBS works with the respective clients to identify key client issues for inclusion within the regular client 
reporting. Quarterly, UK SBS works with respective senior client contacts through a client feedback 
survey to collect feedback at a service level. 

The Executive 
The Executive Team comprises of Richard Semple (Chief Executive Officer), Mike Rendall (Chief 
Technology Officer), John Arnott (Strategy Director), Jacqui White (Business Change Executive), 
Andrew Lewis (Chief Operating Officer), Crispin Dawe (Finance Director) and Caroline Jenkins 
(Company Secretary). · 
The Executive Team meets monthly, supplemented by weekly operational meetings and two strategy 
offsite meetings a year. 
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The Senior and Middle Leadership Groups 
In 2019, the Senior Leadership Group membership was extended to include wider senior management 
team members. A Middle Leadership Group was also established, recognising that leadership occurs at 
multiple levels within the Company. Meetings of the SLG and MLG take place approximately three times 
a year and in 2020 focussed on the different ways of working as a result of COVID-19, what could be 
done to improve employee's wellbeing during this time and provided an opportunity for sharing 
information and discussion on the current strategic matters. 

Risk and Internal Control Management 
The Company uses the 'three lines of defence' risk management approach and operates in line with 
Cabinet Office guidelines: 

• Operational management 
• Central compliance oversight 
• Internal Audit programme 

Risk and control activities are set out in the Risk Management Strategy, Policy and Guidance, which 
were reviewed and endorsed by the Board and Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews 
Corporate Risk at each meeting and holds a deep-dive review of each departmental risk register over the 
course of the year to ensure a consistent approach to risk management in line with the Company's risk 

, appetite. Risk management and internal controls are subject to an annual review by inte_rnal audit. .• 

The Board is responsible for identifying the Company's strategic risks and setting the Company's risk 
appetite, which was last agreed in June 2020, linked to business planning. The Board considers the risk 
register and mitigating actions at every meeting with scrutiny of Risk Management and Internal Controls 
carried out by the Audit Committee. 

The Chief Executive ensures active management of risk and internal controls through monthly RASC 
meetings, scrutiny of the Risk Register, quarterly self-assessments completed by service areas (first line 
of defence), dip sampling of controls and risk response plans by the Risk, Information and Security 
Compliance team (second line of defence) and an annual audit of the internal controls framework 
completed by GIAA (third line of defence). This model of three lines· of defence provides the Chief 
Executive and Board with the required confidence that business processes are operating effectively as 
designed and satisfy control objectives, highlighting process steps or controls that require attention and 
the action to be taken. 

The Chief Executive provides an assurance report to client Accounting Officers twice a year based on 
the internal self-assessments and second line of defence assessment of controls together with the 
results of internal audit reports, audit actions, Performance Indicators and client feedback on key issues 
identified within the relevant time period. 

Risks 
As part of the overall Risk Management process, key risks facing the Company are captured in the 
Corporate Risk Register, each owned by a member of the Executive Team for management and detailed 

1 risk response plans are put in place for those risks with a current risk score that is over-appetite. Risks 
are actively managed and monitored by the Executive, RASC, the Audit Committee and the Board. 
During 2020/21 the Company identified and successfully managed a number of corporate risks including 
those relating to COVID-19, recruitment and retention, GDPR implementation and managing the 
mismatch between strategic intent, client demand and funding of change. 
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At the end of the financial year and looking ahead to 2021/22, the three key high risks are as below. 

• Cyber Security - Due to the continuing evolution / advancement of cyber-crime, this risk 
continues as we seek to ensure we maintain robust defences. 

• COVID-19 Response - UK is continuing to respond to the effects of the global pandemic, with all 
employees equipped to work from home and priority work areas agreed internally and with 
clients. 

• GSS Strategy, Transformation and SHARP - the confluence of programmes requiring resources 
from across· UK SBS, gives rise to potential for delays, capacity challenges and detrimental 
effects on BAU delivery. 

Data Security 
The Company has not been made aware of any significant information security breaches in the 2020/21 
financial year. However, there have been minor breaches which have been managed and reported in 
line with established procedures. 

The high-volume transactional nature of much of the business and the necessary requirement for human 
intervention in processes result in these occasional minor breaches. The Company takes practical 
precautions to minimise breaches and, over the year, common trends have been identified with 
mitigating measures put in place. Employees undertake Knowledge and Information Management 
training on joining the Company and annually thereafter. Where human error is identified disciplinary 
action may result. 

Security policies, including incident management and reporting, are subject to regular reviews to ensure 
they remain fit for purpose. 

Whistleblowing Arrangements 
The Company maintains a Whistleblowing policy which is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee and 
Board. The policy was last updated and approved by the Board in September 2020. The policy is 
accessible to employees via the Company intranet and managers are alerted to this and other core 
Company policies at induction and through training interventions. No incidents were raised in 2020/21. 

Macpherson Review 
The review of quality assurance of Government analytical models undertaken by Sir Nicholas 
Macpherson and published by HM Treasury in March 2013 made a number of recommendations for 
government departments and their arm's length bodies. UK SBS reviewed its use of analytical modelling 
and concluded that it does not have any in scope for reporting. 

Assurance on Tax Compliance 
The Alexander Review published in May 2012 made a number of recommendations to ensure that the 
highest standards of integrity could be demonstrated in the tax arrangements of senior public 
appointees. All UK SBS senior employees and those Board members who are remunerated are paid 
through the payroll. Arrangements are in place to secure assurance from contractors that appropriate tax 
arrangements are in place. 

In 2020/21 the Company identified 13 contractors who were within scope of the Alexander Review 
criteria. Assurance that the appropriate tax arrangements are in place for all 13 contractors was sought 
and confirmation received. 

Review of Effectiveness 
The UK SBS Board is responsible for conducting an annual review of the effectiveness of the 
organisation's governance, risk management and internal controls. The Governance Statement 
represents the outcome of this review. 
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The review is informed by the Board's annual governance review, decisions and actions, the work of the 
Audit Committee, the outcomes of the twice-yearly internal assurance process, the oversight and review 
work of the Executives in relation to corporate and departmental risk mitigation and implementation of 
audit recommendations and the work of the Company's internal and external auditors. 

GIAA was re-appointed as the Company's Internal Auditors for the financial year 2020/21. In his Annual 
Report and Opinion dated 18 May 2021, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) has provided two opinions, one 
for UK SBS customer facing operations and the other for internal operations. In both cases a Moderate 
assurance opinion has been given, maintaining the previous years' ratings. 

The HIA's opinion noted the challenging year faced by the Company, with significant activity and 
resource required to support the developing arrangements for the GSS strategy alongside the continuing 
of BAU throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. The HIA was pleased to note the Company's core service 
line processes and internal controls have continued an upward trajectory. The successful implementation 
of the UK SBS Connect app was also positively noted as a template for future projects concerned with 
improved customer services, maintaining data security and increasing levels of compliance from 
customers with core processes and data completeness. 

As with previous years, a disconnect between UK SBS and customers around the performance and 
financial arrangements with which the shared service is planned, funded, deliver~d and monitored 
remains, with agreement on the level of service and respective risk to be borne by UK SBS and 
customers unresolved in some areas, including Change Management, Business Continuity/ Disaster 
Recovery and Core Controls. 

Conclusion 
The Board has considered the Annual Governance Statement and the evidence underlying its 
production. 

UK SBS will continue to work in partnership with BEIS and UKRI on their respective programmes to 
procure and implement new ERP solutions, whilst responding to the GSS Strategy, managing the 
resultant risks and seizing the opportunities the cluster approach brings. 

The Board is satisfied that the organisation's overall governance and internal control structures are fit for 
purpose, are being applied and are subject to appropriate scrutiny by the Executive, Internal Audit, the 
Audit Committee and the Board. 

Richard Semple 
UK SBS Chief Executive 
On behalf of the Board 
Date: 26 August 2021 
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REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 

The Board determined in December 2015 that they would meet as a Remuneration and/or Nominations 
Committee in line with need rather than maintaining a standing committee. 

Meeting as the Remuneration and/or Nominations Committee the Board is responsible for: 

• Considering and agreeing policy for the remuneration of the Company's Executive, being the 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and any other Executives reporting directly to the CEO. 

• The process for the recruitment, selection, remuneration and terms and conditions for the CEO 
and recommending appointment to the Shareholders for unanimous agreement. This includes 
ensuring compliance with government policies and processes where they apply. 

• The appropriateness of the remuneration policy for all employees and proposals for any annual 
pay award in accordance with government guidelines are also considered. Remuneration in this 
context covers salaries, bonus schemes and any other benefits. 

The Board met twice as the Remuneration Committee in 2020/21 to agree the annual pay award for 
Executives and employees and to consider a diversity and pay report. 

Service Contracts 
Non-Executive Directors and any external members of Committees are appointed for a fixed term of 
office, renewable by agreement. Independent Director appointments, including the Chairman, and the 
CEO, require unanimous agreement of the Shareholders. Owner- nominated Board members require 
unanimous agreement of the Board. The Non'-Executive Directors are appointed for either a two or three 
year term of office. The notice period set out in terms of appointment is no less than three months. 

The services of the majority of Non-Executive Directors are provided on a pro bono basis by their 
employing organisations. As at 31 March 2021, these Directors were Neil Phimister, Ruth Elliot, Alice 
Hurrell and Emma Ferguson-Gould. Emma Ferguson-Gould resigned from the Board on 31 March 2021 
and was replaced by Nick Sammons. The two current Independent Non-Executive Directors on the 
Board are both remunerated. There are also two external non-remunerated members co-opted to the 
Audit Committee. 

Information regarding Directors', External Committee members' and Executives' service contracts is set 
out below. 
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Directors and.Committee Members (excluding the Chief Executive Officer) (subject to audit) 

Appointment Remuneration £000 
From To- 2021/20 2019/20 

Timothy KniQhton (Chairman) 1 26 March 2015 30 September 2021 15-20 5-10 

Graham McAlister 2 01 April 2018 31 March 2023 0-5 0-5 

Neil Phimister 3 17 October 2017 31 October 2021 N/A N/A 
Alice Hurrell 5 27 September 2018 30 September 2022 N/A N/A 
Ruth Elliot 4 1 April 2018 31 March 2022 N/A N/A 
Emma Ferquson-Gould 6 25 March 2019 31 March 2021 N/A N/A 
Kim Humberstone (co-opted 27 September 2018 30 September 2022 N/A N/A 
member of the Audit 
Committee) 
Victoria McMyn ( co-opted 15 June 2020 30 June 2022 N/A N/A 
member of the Audit 
Committee) 

1. Tim Knighton was re-appointed by the Shareholders in December 2020 for a further 6-month term from March 2021 . 

2. Graham McAlister was re-appointed by the Shareholders in March 2020 for a three-year term. 

3. Neil Phimister was re-appointed by the Board in October 2019 for a two-year term and re-appointed as the UK SBS Audit Committee Chairman. 

4. Ruth Elliot was re-appointed by the Board in March 2020 for a two-year term. 

5. Alice Hurrell was re-appointed by the Board in September 2020 for a two-year term. 

6. Emma Ferguson-Gould resigned from the Board on 31 March 2021 and was replaced by Nick Sammons. 

UK SBS Executive Team (including the Chief Executive Officer) 

Name Aooointment Date Expired Term Notice Period 
Richard Semple 01 May 2018 Open Ended 3 months 
John Arnott 01 January 2016 Open Ended 3 months 
Jacqueline White 07 Auqust 2017 Open Ended 3 months 
Michael Rendall 01 October 2017 Open Ended 3 months 
Andrew Lewis 04 January 2018 Open Ended 3 months 
Crispin Dawe 01 March 2018 Open Ended 3 months 

Salary 
Salary covers pensionable and non-pensionable amounts and includes: gross salaries; performance 
related pay; overtime; allowances and any ex-gratia payments. It does not include any amounts for the 
reimbursement of expenses directly incurred in the performance of an individual's duties in accordance 
with the UK SBS travel and subsistence policy. 

Benefits In Kind 
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits prov1ded by the employer and treated by 
HMRC as a taxable emolument. Benefits in kind were not provided to any member of senior 
management during the financial year. 

Bonuses 
UK SBS did not budget or plan for bonus payments in 2020/21 and none were paid (2019/20: none). 

Pay Multiples (subject to audit) 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the total remuneration of the highest
paid director in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation's workforce. 
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Total remuneration for these purposes includes salary (as defined above), non-consolidated 
performance-related pay, benefits in kind and severance payments. It does not include employer 
pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions. 

The banded remuneration of the highest-paid Executive in UK SBS in the financial year 2020/21 was 
£145,000-£150,000 (2019/20: £145,000-£150,000). This was 5 times (2019/20: 5) the median 
remuneration of the workforce, which was £29,614 (2019/20: £29,040). 

The Pension Scheme 
The main pension scheme used by employees of UK SBS is the Research Councils' Pension Scheme 
(RCPS), which is a defined benefit government pension scheme. The Company also offers a 
Partnership stakeholder pension. Further details of these schemes are given in the notes to the financial 
statements. · 

The remuneration and pension tables shown below include members of the Executive Team. 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Richard Semple, Chief Exec ive Officer 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd. 
Date 26 August 2021 
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Remuneration of Senior Employees (subject to audit) 

Single total figure of remuneration 
Employee Salary Bonus Payments Pension Benefits Total 
Name (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) (£'000) 

2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 

Arnott J 95-100 100-105 0 0 0 0 95-100 100-105 
Semple R 145-150 145-150 0 0 0 0 145-150 145-150 
Lewis A 120-125 115-120 0 0 34 16 155-160 135-140 
Rendall M 90-95 90-95 0 0 31 33 120-125 125-130 
White J 90-95 90-95 0 0 30 36 120-125 125-130 
DaweC 85-90 80-85 0 0 30 31 115-120 110-115 

For part of 2019/20 (1 May 2018 - 1 July 2019) John Arnott was on temporary promotion as part 
of his secondment to UKRI. 

No Executive bonuses were awarded in the years 2020/21 or 2019/20 

Pension Benefits of Senior Employees (subject to audit) 

Employee Accrued Real increase Cash Cash Real increase in 
Name pension and in pension and equivalent equivalent cash equivalent 

lump sum at lump sum at transfer value transfer value transfer value as 
pension age pension age as as at as at at 31/03/2021 

as at 31/03/2021 at 31/03/2021 31/03/2021 31/03/2020 (£'000) 
(£5,000 bands) (£2,500 bands) (£'000) (£'000) 

Lewis A 50 - 55 0-2.5 1,159 1083 32 
Lump sum 155- Lump sum 5 -

160 7.5 
Rendall M 20 - 25 0 - 2.5 388 342 24 
White J 10 - 15 0 - 2.5 201 166 21 
DaweC 15 - 20 0-2.5 323 278 24 

Richard Semple and John Arnott opted out of pension arrangements throughout the periods shown, so 
no figures are shown. 

Details of Pension Scheme 
Employees of UK SBS are members of the Research Councils' Pension Schemes (RCPS) which are 
defined benefit schemes funded from annual grant-in-aid on a pay-as-you-go basis. The benefits are by 
analogy to the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme, except that while the schemes provide retirement 
and related benefits based on final or average emoluments, redundancy and injury benefits are 
administered and funded by UK SBS. The scheme is administered by the Research Councils' Joint 
Superannuation Service. 

From 30 July 2007, employees may be in one of four defined schemes; either a 'final salary' scheme 
(classic, classic plus or premium); or a career average scheme (Nuvos). Pensions payable are 
increased annually in line with changes in the Consumer Prices Index (CPI). Employees' contributions 
vary between 4.6% and 8.05% depending on scheme. The employer's contribution is agreed by the 
RCPS Board of Management on the recommendation of the Government Actuary's Department (GAD) 
and is currently set at 26.0% of pensionable pay. 
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The Research Councils' Pension Scheme (RCPS) is a 'by-analogy' scheme to the Principal Civil Service 
Pension Scheme (PCSPS) and as a result any changes made to the PCSPS, including member 
contribution rates, are automatically applied to the RCPS. 

On 1 April 2015 PCSPS launched a new pension scheme called Alpha. This scheme is similar to the 
Nuvos career average scheme, but with the retirement age aligned to the state pension age. RCPS 
cannot at present create a by-analogy Alpha scheme as the legislation does not currently permit this. 
Reform options are currently being discussed with HM Treasury and BEIS who have given permission 
for RCPS to conti.nue 'as is' for the time being. 

A table of the employee contributions by pay band and scheme is provided below. 

. , 4c .:: .., l .... ~ 11 .. ~, ._ , :;i ... ..:, . ~ r tt.!:: : -Annual l- ,r-5- I :-,ro ..... ,. .,.,, .. ,,c;- ·- '"' • - - ,-
Pensionable .1l ·, ::-s 
Earnings (full-time 2020/21 2020/21 
equivalent basis) contributions contributions 
£0-£22,600 
£22,601 - £54,901 
£54,901 '"£150,000 
£150,001+ 

4.60 
5.45 
7.35 
8.05 

4.60 
5.45 
7.35 
8.05 

A Partnership Pension Account was made available to new stc;iff from 1 October 2002, based on the 
portable Stakeholder Pension introduced by the Government in 2001. This is a defined contribution 
scheme. The employers pay the RCPS 0.8% of pensionable pay to cover death in service and ill health 
benefits. The employers pay the balance to the employee's private pension provider. 

The accrued pension quoted is the pension the member is entitled to receive when they reach pension 
age or immediately on ceasing to be an active member of the scheme if they are already at or over 
pensionable age. Pensionable age is 60 for members of classic, classic plus and premium and 65 for 
members of Nuvos. 

Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) 
A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension 
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits valued are the 
member's accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is 
a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses 
to transfer the benefits accrued in the former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits 
that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not 
just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. The CETV figures include the value of 
any pension benefit in another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the 
Research Councils' pension arrangement and for which the RCPS has received a transfer payment 
commensurate with the additional pension liabilities being assumed. They also include any additional 
pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of pension service 
in the scheme at their own cost. 

Real Increase in the Value of the CETV 
The real -increase in the value of the CETV reflects the increase effectively funded by the employer. It 
takes account of the increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee 
(excludir19 the value of any benefits transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses 
comnion market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF UK SHARED BUSINESS SERVICES LIMITED 

Opinion on financial statements 

I have audited the financial statements of UK Shared Business Services Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 
which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash 
Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes, including the significant accounting policies. The 
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Accounting 
Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as having been audited. 

In my opinion the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the state of the colnpariy's affairs as at 31 March 2021 and of the loss for the year 
then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. 

Opinion on regularity 

In my opinion, in all material respects the income and expenditure recorded in the financial statements have been 
applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions recorded in the financial statements 
conform to the authorities which govern them. 

Basis for opinions 

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK), and applicable law and 
Practice Note 10 'Audit of Financial Statements of Public Sector Entities in the United Kingdom'. My responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
section of my report. 

Those standards require me and my staff to comply with the Financial Reporting Council's Revised Ethical Standard 
2019. I have also elected to apply the ethical standards relevant to listed entities. I am independent of UK Shared 
Business Services Limited in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial 
statements in the UK. My staff and I have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, I have concluded that UK Shared Business Services Limited's use of the going 
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions 
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on UK Shared Business Services Limited's ability to 
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised 

' ( 

for issue. 

My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant 
sections of this report. 
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Other Information 

The other information comprises information included in the annual report, but does not include the parts of the 
Remuneration Report described in that report as having been audited, the financial statements and my auditor's , 
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. My opinion on the financial statements does 
not cover the other information and except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in my report, I do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to 
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If I 
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, I am required to determine whether this 
gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work I have performed, 
I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am required to report that fact. 

I have nothing to report in this regard. 

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the parts of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the 
Government Financial Reporting Manual; 

• the information given in the Strategic and Directors' Reports for the financial year for which the financial 
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. 

• the Strategic report and the Directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements 

Matters on which I report by exception 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of UK Shared Business Services Limited and its environment 
obtained in the course of the audit, I have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic report or the Directors' 
report. 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires me 
to report to you if, in my opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for my audit have not been received 
from branches not visited by my staff; or 

• the financial statements and the parts of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with 
the accounting records and returns; or 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• I have not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit 

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for: 

• the preparation of the financial' statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework 
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; 

• internal controls as directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements to 
be free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; and 
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• assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to 
liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

My responsibility is to audit and report on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK). 

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

I design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of 
non-compliance with laws and regulation, including fraud . 

My procedures included the following: 

• Inquiring of management, UK Shared Business Services Limited's head of internal audit and those charged 
with governance, including obtaining and reviewing supporting documentation relating to UK Shared 
Business Services Lim ited 's policies and procedures relating to: 

o identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of 
any instances of non-compliance; 

o detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud; and 

o the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and 
regulations including the company's controls relating to the Companies Act 2006 and Managing 
Public Money. 

• discussing among the engagement team, regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial 
statements and any potential indicators of fraud . As part of this discussion, I identified potential for fraud in 
the following areas: revenue recognition and posting of unusual journals; and 

• obtaining an understanding of UK Shared Business Services Limited's framework of authorities as well as 
other legal and regulatory frameworks that UK Shared Business Services Limited operates in, focusing on 
those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the financial statements or that had a fundamental 
effect on the operations of UK Shared Business Services Limited. The key laws and regulations I considered 
in this context included the Companies Act 2006, the Sponsorship Framework Document, Managing Public 
Money, Employment law and tax legislation. 

In addition to the above; my procedures to respond to identified risks included the following : 

• reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance 
with relevant laws and regulations discussed above; 

• reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and the Board; and 
\ 

• in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of 
' ' "), I 

journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements · made in making accounting 
estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant 
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business. 
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I also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team 
members and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations throughout the 
audit. 

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/audltorsresponsiblllties . This description forms part of my report. 

In addition, I am required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the income and expenditure 
reported in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial 
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during 
my audit. 

Stephen Young (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

'3 1 llvau~t 29ZI 

For and on behalf of the 

Comptroller and Auditor General (Statutory Auditor) 

National Audit Office 

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road 

Victoria 

London 

SW1W9SP 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 March 2021 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 
Revenue 
Cost of sales 

GROSS PROFIT 

Administrative expenses 

OPERATING LOSS 

Lease Interest 
Finance income 

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 

Taxation 

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR 

Notes 

2.1 
2.2 

2.3 

4 

5 

2021 

£000 

40,701 
(37,146) 

3,555 

(3,917) 

(362) 

(3) 
1 

(364) 

0 

(364) 

(364) 

2020 
Re-presented 

£000 

38,557 
(35,550) 

3,007 

(3,391) 

(384) 

(4) 
18 

(370) 

(4) 

(374) 

(374) 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income has been re-presented for the financial year 2020/21 to show the lease 
interest below the operating loss. This has also been reflected in the cashflow statement. 

All revenue and costs relate to continuing activities. No gains and losses have been recognised apart from the loss 
for the year. 

The Company has large retained losses because since the Company's inception it has not included depreciation 
and amortisation within the cost base used to calculate service charges to clients .. Therefore, depreciation on 
those non-current assets that were initially funded from share capital generated significant losses. Capital 
expenditure since then has been funded by income which is deferred and then released as the underlying funded 
assets are depreciated. This has a break-even effect on results. All business-as-usual services and projects 
undertaken by the Company are charged to clients in such a way as to try to break even. 

Included within Cost of Sales is £1.7m cost of depreciation and amortisation (19/20 £1 .4m). Any surplus or deficit 
recorded in the Company's accounts is consolidated within the sponsor department's accounts. 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2021 

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Intangible Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Right of use assets 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Trade and other receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 
Leases 

NET CURRENT ASSETS 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Other Payables 
Leases 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

NET ASSETS 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Called up share capital 
Retained earnings 

TOTAL EQUITY 

Notes 

6 
6 

10 

7 
8 

9 
10 

9 
10 

12 

2021 
£000 

2,373 
2,361 

145 

4,879 

5,585 
1,521 

7,106 

11,985 

6,849 
66 

6,915 

191 

2,725 
18 

9,658 

2.327 

62,016 
(59,689) 

2,327 

2020 
£000 

1,632 
2,431 

264 

4,327 

5,023 
2,090 

7,113 

11,440 

6,131 
85 

6,216 

897 

2,357 
176 

8,749 

2 691 

62,016 
(59,325) 

2,691 

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 August 2021 and were signed on its 
behalf by: 

(Z_~ 
Richard Semple, Chief Executive Officer 
UK Shared Business Services Ltd 
Date: 26 August 2021 
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2021 

Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities 
Operating loss 

Depreciation charges tangible assets 
Depreciation charge right of use assets 
Amortisation charge intangible assets 
Decrease/(lncrease) in prepayments 
Decrease/(lilcrease) in receivables 
(Decrease )/Increase in payables 

Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities 

Cash flows from/(used In) investing activities 
Purchases of tangible fixed assets 
Purchases of intangible fixed assets 
Taxation 
Interest received 

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities 

Net cash from/(used in) Financing Activities 

Repayment of capital element of obligations under leases 
Lease liability interest 

Net cash from/(used in) Financing activities 

lncrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Notes 

6 
10 
6 
7 
7 
9 

6 
6 
5 

10 

8 

8 
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2021 
£000 

(362) 

707 
119 
920 

(392) 
(170) 

1,086 

1,908 

(637) 
(1 ,661) 

0 
1 

(2,297) 

(177) 
(3) 

(180) 

(569) 

2,090 

1,521 

2020 
£000 

(384) 

705 
81 

622 
(93) 

(812) 
1,263 

1,382 

(848) 
(996) 

(4) 
18 

(1,830) 

(84) 
(4) 

(88) 

(536) 

2,626 

2,090 



Statement of Changes in Equity 

Called up 
share Retained Total 

capital earnings equity 
£000 £000 £000 

Balance as at 1 April 2019 62,016 (58,951) 3,065 

Retained profit/(loss) for 2019/20 (374) (374) 

Balance at 31 March 2020 62,016 (59,325) 2,691 

Retained profit/(loss) for 2020/21 (364) (364) 

Balance at 31 Mar 2021 62,016 (59,689) 2,327 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 

1. Accounting Policies 

1.1 Basis of preparation 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) and meet the accounting and disclosure requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and 
the accounting and financial reporting standards issued or adopted by the International Accounting 
Standards Board as interpreted for public sector use by the Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) in so far 
as these requirements are appropriate and do not conflict with the Companies Act. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. Estimates are continually evaluated and are based 
on historical experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
There are no judgements or key sources of estimate uncertainty that have a significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements other than as disclosed in the financial statements. 

1,2 Going concern basis 

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will continue in operational existence for 
the foreseeable future. The financial statements are therefore prepared on the basis of going 
concern. This opinion is based on commitments made by the Shareholders that they will continue to take 
service from the Company and also on them approving the Company's 3'year plan for 2021-2024. 

1.3 New accounting standards and interpretations 

The Company has considered the newly-issued accounting standards, interpretations and amendments 
to published standards that are not yet effective and concluded that they are either not relevant to the 
Company or would not have a significant impact on the Company's financia.I statements. 

1.4 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised in the accounts at the point that it is earned through the delivery of services. 
Fees for the provision of continuing services are agreed with customers at the start of each financial year 
and are set at a level to cover the anticipated costs of service provision, excluding depreciation and 
amortisation. The costs of other sundry activities are charged in arrears on a cost recovery basis when 
the project or task has been completed or a milestone reached. Funding from clients for capital 
expenditure is deferred initially and then released as the u•derlying funded assets are depreciated. 

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of services to 
customers in a way that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in 
exchange for services. 

Revenue is stated net of VAT where VAT is applicable. 

1.5 Deferred income 

From time-to-time the Company may receive specific amounts of income in advance of making the 
expenditure that the income is intended to cover. In such cases, the income is deferred and released as 
income in the period in which the relevant costs, such as depreciation and amortisation, are recognised. 
Deferred income is not recognised as part of the requirement for IFRS 15 but as part of IAS 20, 
accounting for Government Grants. 

Deferred income is shown within liabilities in the statement of financial position. 
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1.6 Non-current assets and depreciation 

The value of the Company's non-current assets is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. Only those assets costing more than £3,000 and having an economic value to the Company beyond the 
year in which they were bought are capitalised .. Where parts of an item have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate assets. 

Depreciation is applied on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic lives of assets. Assets under 
construction are not depreciated. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of non-current assets are 
reviewed at least at each balance sheet date. 

1.6.1 Intangible non-current assets 

Intangible assets relate to purchased software, software licences and certain system development costs. 

1.6.2 Tangible non-current assets 

Tangible assets include items such as IT hardware and fixtures & fittings. 

1.6.3 Estimated useful economic lives of non-current assets 

The following estimated useful economic lives are used in the calculation of depreciation. 

Tangible assets 
Fixtures and fittings: 
IT hardware: 

Intangible assets 
IT software: 
IT development costs : 

5 years 
5 years 

5 years 
5 years 

If capitalised development costs have an expected useful economic life that is shorter than 5 years, the costs are 
depreciated over that shorter period. 

Capitalised right-of-use assets are depreciated over the life of the lease. 

1.6.4 Impairment review 

Depreciation methods, estimated useful economic lives and residual values of non-current assets are 
reviewed at least at each balance sheet date. Any resultant impairment charges are charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income and the carrying value of the relevant non-current asset is reduced 
to the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the amount to be recovered through 
use or sale. 

1.7 Financial instruments 

The nature of the Company's activities and the method of its funding mean that the Company is not 
exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by non-public sector entities. Moreover, financial 
instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of the listed 
companies to which IAS 32, IFRS 7 and 9 mainly apply. The Company has limited powers to borrow or 
invest surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to~day operational activities 
and are not held to change the risks facing the Company in undertaking its activities. 

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost after an 
appropriate provision for expected credit loss. Financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, and 
other financial liabilities. They are initially recognised at the fair value of consideration received, less 
directly attributable transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 
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1.8 Taxation 

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred taxation. Current corporation tax is 
the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. 

1.9 Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the 
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it can be regarded as more 
likely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying 
timing differences can be deducted. 

1.10 Employee benefit costs 

The main pension scheme used by employees of the Company is the Research Councils Pension 
Scheme (RCPS), which is a defined benefit government pension scheme. The Company's contributions 
to RCPS are defined contributions charged to the Income Statement in accordance with actuarial 
recommendations. The Company does not face actuarial gains or losses. Liabilities for the payment of 
future benefits are an obligation on RCPS and are consequently not included in these financial 
statements. · 

1.11 VAT 

Revenue is stated net of VAT where VAT is applicable. The Company has to comply with a limited 
partial recovery formula for VAT purposes and therefore expenditure and fixed asset purchases are 
shown inclusive of VAT where applicable. Residual input tax is reclaimable by the application of the 
partial recovery formula and is taken as negative expenditure. 

1.12 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation, 
and where the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. 
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2. Revenue, Cost of Sales, Administrative Expenses and Auditor's 
Remuneration 

2.1 Revenue 

Revenue 2020/21 2019/20 
Rendering of services 

£000 £000 

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 10,740 33,165 
UK Research and Innovation 27,407 2,705 

Revenue from related parties 38,147 35,870 

other Non-Departmental Public Bodies 11 25 
other Central Government Bodies 2,536 2,469 
other Income 7 193 

Total revenue 40,701 38,557 

In 2019/20, the cost of services provided to UKRI was paid by BEIS. In 2020/21 the cost of services 
provided to UKRI was paid by UKRI. 

Revenue is recognised as follows: 

Standard Service Charges - fees for the provision of continuing services agreed with customers at the 
start of each financial year to cover the anticipated costs of service provision. Revenue is recognised 
annually and the charges recovered in 12 equal parts on a monthly basis. 

Recoverables - charges raised to recover the cost of items purchased for re-sale to clients such as 
training and immigration charges. Costs are fully recoverable and revenue is recognised on successful 
completion of the service. 

Other service charges - sources of income for providing other services e.g., recovery of secondment 
charges for staff on loan to client organisations. Revenue is recognised following provision of the 
service. 

Transition/Programmes - sources of income to recover the cost of specific, large projects UK SBS has 
been requested to undertake. Charges are made and revenue -recognised when a project milestone has 
been reached. 

Deferred Income - income that has been deferred and is released as income in the period in which the 
relevant costs, such as depreciation and amortisation, are recognised. Deferred income is not 
recognised as part of the requirement for IFRS 15 but as part of IAS 20, accounting for Government 
Grants. 
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Other Deferred 
Standard service service Transition/ Income 

2020/21 charges Recoverables charges Programmes Release Total 
Income 
analysis 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

BEIS 7,699 33 0 1,420 1,588 10,740 
UKRI 24,499 712 0 2,196 0 27,407 
ONDPB 11 0 0 0 0 11 
OCGB 2,536 0 0 0 0 2,536 
Other income 0 0 0 7 O· 7 

· Total 34,745 745 0 3,623 1,588 40,701 

In 2019/20, the cost of services provided to UKRI was paid by BEIS. In 2020/21 the cost of services provided to UKRI was paid 
by UKRI. 

Other Deferred 
Standard service service Transition/ Income 

2019/20 charges Recoverables charges Programmes Release Total 
Income 
analysis 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

BEIS 30,927 0 0 1,140 1,098 33,165 
UKRI 0 1,315 34 1,333 23 2,705 
ONDPB 25 0 0 0 0 25 
OCGB 2,469 0 0 0 0 2,469 
Other income 0 67 40 86 0 193 

Total 33,421 1,382 74 2,559 1,121 38,557 

Key: 

BEIS Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
UKRI UK Research and Innovation 
ONDPB - Other Non-Departmental Public Bodies 
OCGB Other Central Government Bodies 
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2.2 Cost of sales 

The cost of sales is the direct cost of providing service to our customers relating to the above revenue 
and is as follows. 

Payroll costs 
IT equipment, maintenance and software 
Consultancy 
Depreciation 
Amortisation 
Depreciation of right of use assets 
Cost of Goods Sold 
Telecommunications 
Travel and subsistence 
Other 

Cost of sales of continuing activities 

2020/21 
£000 

22,102 
9,849 
2,158 

707 
920 
119 
765 
277 

73 
176 

37,146 

2019/20 
£000 

20,938 
8,435 
2,632 

705 
622 

81 
1,254 

332 
307 
244 

35,550 

The spend on IT equipment in 2020/21 included approximately £0.9m extra in relation to equipping 
employees to be able to work from home during the restrictions arising as a result of the COVID-19 
pandemic. 

2.3 Administrative Expenses 

Administrative expenses, the costs of corporate support as opposed to the costs of delivering service, 
are as follows. 

2020/21 
£000 

Payroll costs 2,914 
Administrative costs 938 
External audit 65 

Total administrative expenses 3,917 

Payroll costs include social security costs and employer's pension contributions. 
The external audit fee was £54k plus VAT. 

2019/20 
£000 

2,153 
1,179 

59 

3,391 

No fees were paid to the Company's auditors other than for the audit of the Company's annual accounts as above. 
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3. Employees and Directors 

2020/21 2019/20 
£000 £000 

Wages and salaries 18,910 17,423 
Social security costs 1,724 1,619 
Other pension costs 4,382 4,049 
Restructuring costs 0 0 

25,016 23,091 

The employees' and directors' payroll costs are included with the cost of sales and administrative 
expenses disclosed in note 2. 

Included in the employment costs above are amounts in relation to directors of the company as shown in 
the directors' report. There is no performance related pay in respect of directors and there has been no 
compensation for loss of office during the period. The remuneration of the directors was £169,272 
(2019/20, £158,976) and nil pension contributions are paid. 

The average monthly number of employees during the year was as follows. 

2020/21 

Average number of employees 
Average number of employees (full time equivalent) 
Average number of contractors 

600 
570 

25 

2019/20 

567 
541 

34 

Included in the figures above are 13 employees oh fixed term contracts with a combined salary of £449k (2019/20, 
14 employees on fixed term contracts with a combined salary of £407k). 

1 

4. Loss before Income Tax 

The loss before income tax is stated after charging: 

Depreciation - tangible assets 
Amortisation - intangible assets 
Depreciation - right of use assets 
External auditors' remuneration (including VAT) 

5. Income Tax 

2020/21 
£000 

707 
920 
119 
65 

2019/20 
£000 

705 
622 

81 
59 

The income tax charge in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises Corporation Tax charged 
at 19% (2019/20 19%) on bank interest receivable plus any adjustments arising from prior years. 
Corporation Tax of £Ok is recognised for 2020/21 (2019/20 £4k). 

There is no deferred tax in these financial statements relating to 2020/21 or 2019/20. 

No deferred tax ass~t has been recognised as the Company is not likely to incur profits in the near future 
against which such assets may be offset. 
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6. Non-current Assets 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

COST 
At 1 April 2020 
Additions 
Disposals 

At 31 Mar 2021 

AMORTISATION 
At 1 April 2020 
Disposals 
Charge for year 

At 31 Mar 2021 

NET BOOK VALUE 

At 31 Mar 2021 

COST 
At 1 April 2019 
Additions 
Disposals 

At 31 March 2020 

AMORTISATION 
At 1 April 2019 
Eliminated on disposals 
Charge for year 

At 31 March 2019 

NET BOOK VALUE 

At 31 March 2020 

Software & 
Intangibles 

£000 

61,749 
1,661 
(161) 

63,249 

60,117 
(161) 

920 

60,876 

2,373 

60,753 
996 

0 

61,749 

59,495 
0 

622 

60,117 

1,632 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

COST 
At 1 April 2020 
Additions 
Disposals 

At 31 Mar 2021 

DEPRECIATION 
At 1 April 2020 
Disposals 
Charge for year 

At 31 Mar 2021 

NET BOOK VALUE 

At 31 Mar 2021 

COST 
At 1 April 2019 
Additions 
Disposals · 

At 31 March 2020 

DEPRECIATION 
At 1 April 2019 
Eliminated on disposals 
Charge for year 

At 31 March 2019 

NET BOOK VALUE 

At 31 March 2020 

Plant& 
machinery 

£000 

11,055 
637 

(6,760) 

4,932 

8,624 
(6,760) 

707 

2,571 

2,361 

10,207 
848 

0 

11,055 

7,919 
0 

705 

8,624 

2,431 

Depreciation rnethods, useful lives and residual values of the non-current assets were reviewed by the 
Company as at 31 March 2021. 
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7. Trade and Other Receivables 

Current: 

Trade receivables 
Other receivables 
Accrued Income 
Prepayments 

8. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Current cash and equivalents 

Cash comprises cash at bank. 

9. Trade and Other Payables 

Current: 

Trade payables 
Other payables 
Accruals 
Deferred Income 

Non-Current: 

Deferred Income received from related parties 

52 

2020/21 
£000 

2,847 
9 

1,274 
1,455 

5,585 

2020/21 
£000 

1,521 

2020/21 
£000 

794 
287 

3,816 
1,952 

6,849 

2,725 

2,725 

2019/20 
£000 

1,747 
24 

2,190 
1,063 

5,023 

2019/20 
£000 

2,090 

2019/20 
£000 

160 
819 

3,544 
1,608 

6,131 

2,357 

2,357 



10. Right-of-Use Assets 

Capitalised asset balance as at 01 Apr 20 
Depreciation charge for year 
Net asset balance as at 31 Mar 21 

2020/21 
£000 

264 
(119) 
145 

Minimum lease liabilities under non-cancellable operating leases fall due qS follows: 

Within one year 
Between two and five years 
Over five years 
Total lease liability 

2020/21 
£000 

66 
18 
0 

84 

The lease asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over 5 years at an annual cost of £66k. 

2019/20 
£000 

345 
(81) 
264 

2019/20 
£000 

85 
176 

0 
261 

Figures regarding the right-of-use assets have been recalculated further to new information being provided by the supplier, and 
have resulted in an increase of £53k to the deprecation charge for the year 2020/21 and a reduction of £92k in the closing 
liability stated as at 31 March 2021. 

UK SBS also pays a variable element with regards t_o _this lease dependent on the number of copies made (click cost). This cost 
is partially absorbed by UKRI, according to usage. 

11. Financial Instruments and Capital Risk Management 

Risk management is carried out by the Executive Team under the direction of the Board. The 
Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern 
in order to provide benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital 
structure. 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Company may return capital to shareholders or 
issue new shares. 

Credit risk 
The Company has credit risk in the form of receivables from its customer companies. These companies 
are all in the public sector, have an appropriate credit history and have"undertaken to pay on agreed 
terms. 

Liquidity risk 
The Company evaluates and follows continuously the amount of liquid funds needed for business 
operations in order to secure that funding. 

Cash flows and fair value interest rate risk 
As the Company has no significant< interest-bearing assets, the operating income and operating cash 
flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates. 

Fair value 
Assets and liabilities have been accounted for at historic cost, which due to their nature is not materially 
different from Fair Value. 
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12. Called Up Share Capital 

Ownership of the Company 

As at 31 Mar 2021, the shareholders of the Company were as below. 

• The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) held one Government 
Department (GD) Share carrying 51 % of the votes controlling the company. 

• UK Research and Innovation (UKRI) held nine Non-Government Department (NGO) Shares 
carrying 49% of the votes. 

• The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) held four Deferred Shares. 
• The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) also held 62,016,358 Non

Voting Shares. Holders of Non-Voting Shares are entitled to 100 per cent of the profits of the 
Company. The holders of GD, NGO and Deferred Shares have no right to dividends or to 
otherwise participate in the profits of the Company. 

Share Capital 

Allotted, issued and fully paid: 

Number: 

1 
9 
4 
62,016,358 

Class: 

Government Dept 
Non-Government Dept 
Deferred 
Non-Voting 

13. Employee Benefit Obligations 

Pension plans 

Nominal 
Value: 

£1 
£1 
£1 
£1 

2020/21 2019/20 
£ £ 

1 1 
9 9 
4 4 

62,016,358 62,016,358 

62,016,372 62,016,372 

The Research Councils' Pension Scheme (RCPS) is in all respects 'by-analogy' with the Principal Civil 
Service Pension Scheme, except that the employer's contribution is determined separately on the 
recommendation of the Government Actuary Department (GAD). It is a notionally funded, contributory, 
defined benefit scheme, and is administered by the Research Councils' Joint Superannuation Services. 
The Scheme's accounts are prepared by UK Research and Innovation (UKRI) on behalf of the Chief 
Executive UKRI as Accounting Officer for RCPS. 

The employer's contribution for those Company employees who participate in RCPS is agreed by RCPS 
Board of Management on the recommendation of the GAD and the employer's pension rate until further 
notice will be 26.0%. 

The RCPS is a defined benefit scheme, which is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme of which UK 
SBS is unable to identify its share of the assets and liabilities. The RCPS prepares separates accounts 
and the Company contributions for 2020/21 were £4.4m (2019(20 £4.0m). 

Some employees have retained alternative pension arrangements that originated with the organisations 
from which they transferred. For 2020/21 the employer's contribution for these employees was 14.9% for 
the Medical Research Council Pension scheme and 15.8% for the United Kingdom Atomic Energy 
Authority Scheme. UK SBS also offers a stakeholder pension which attracts age-related employer 
contributions between 3% and 12.5%. Additionally, any level of optional employee contributions is 
matched by a further employer contribution up to maximum of 3% of pensionable salary. 
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In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in theRCPS financial statements do not differ 
materially from those that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the 
HM Treasury Financial Reporting Manual requires that "the period between formal actuarial valuations 
shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years". The last formal actuarial 
valuation undertaken for RCPS as at 31 March 2018 was completed in February 2021. 

14. Related Parties 

Revenue from related parties is detailed in note 2. 

Expenditure with related parties during the year was as follows 
2020/21 

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
UK Research and Innovation 

£000 

155 
1,242 

1 397 

2019/20 
£000 

1,068 
141 

1 209 

Expenditure with related parties is for various items, the biggest being rent and building 
services, printing services and staff secondments. 

Trade receivables and accrued income balances with related parties 
2020/21 

Due within 1 year: £000 

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
UK Research and Innovation 
Research Councils' Pension Scheme 

Trade payables and accruals balances with related parties 

1,414 
2,527 

0 

3 941 

2020/21 
Due within 1 year: £000 

Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
UK Research and Innovation · 
Research Councils' Pension Scheme 

Related Party Disclosures 

0 
409 

0 

409 

2019/20 
£000 

968 
2,380 

22 

3 370 

2019/20 
£000 

648 
141 
29 

818 

The Company is a separate legal entity, wholly-owned by customers, providing services to multiple customers. 
Transactions with related parties take place on an arm's-length basis. The Company seeks to set service charges 
such that it breaks even. · 

The Company is deemed to be a state-controlled entity because the only shareholders are publicly-owned entities. 

The shareholders at 31 Mar 2021 were the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) and 
UK Research and Innovation (UKRI}. 

The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS} is the ultimate controlling party of the 
Company. 

The accounts provide disclosure of all material transactions with those who are recognised as key management 
personnel as per IAS 24 'Related Parties'. This is taken to be those members of staff who are included under 
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Executive Directors' remuneration in the Remuneration Report and all UK SBS Board members. Currently there 
are no additional disclosures due to related parties. 

15. Losses and Special Payments· 

There were no losses or special payments during the financial year 2020/21 (2019/20 £0). 

16. Events after the Reporting Period 

There have been no other significant events between the year end and th~ date of approval of these accounts 
which would require a change to th_e information presented. 

(' 
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